
In 1967, 19 buildings lined Cen-
ter Street. Today·,·onlyeight
remain. Fifty-two Center Street
(the Thomas Gill House) was
vacant before Herbert Gideon
opened Erebus, but its rich history
dates back to 1869. In 1868, three
wooden buildings existed on the
site, all the property of Thomas
Gill: his grocery store, his home,
and a dwelling occupied by nine
Irish families. When a fire broke
out in a nearby stable, all three
burned to the ground. A single
house, built of brick, replaced
them.

Gill, a native of Galway, Ireland,
died of fever at the age of 56 in
1875, when his property went to
his children. The house changed
hands twice. Then, in 1908, it
became the Fraternity House: "a
community center offering without
the distinction of sex, sect, or age,
a place of pleasant resort and a
means of self-improvement at lit-
tle or no expense." Its sponsor,
Portland Fraternity (formed in
1870), conducted a free evening
school for 25 years until the city
opened its own free school. Frater-
nity House had an art school, a
music school, game rooms, and a
drama club. Area residents used
the building for plays, parties, dan-
ces, and as headquarters for more
than 30 adult and juvenile
organizations. •
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